# Council Assembly (Ordinary Meeting)

MINUTES of the Council Assembly (Ordinary Meeting) held on Wednesday 25 March 2015 at 7.00 pm at Harris Academy Peckham, 112 Peckham Road, London SE15 5DZ

#### PRESENT:

The Worshipful the Mayor for 2014/15, Councillor Sunil Chopra

Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Anood Al-Samerai
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Maisie Anderson
Councillor James Barber
Councillor Radha Burgess
Councillor Fiona Colley
Councillor Neil Coyle
Councillor Stephanie Cryan
Councillor Catherine Dale

Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Karl Eastham
Councillor Gavin Edwards
Councillor Paul Fleming
Councillor Tom Flynn
Councillor Dan Garfield
Councillor Chris Gonde
Councillor Lucas Green
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Barrie Hargrove
Councillor Jon Hartley
Councillor Helen Hayes
Councillor David Hubber
Councillor Peter John

Councillor Eleanor Kerslake Councillor Sarah King Councillor Anne Kirby Councillor Sunny Lambe

Councillor Ben Johnson

Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE
Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall
Councillor Richard Livingstone
Councillor Rebecca Lury
Councillor Vijay Luthra
Councillor Jane Lyons
Councillor Eliza Mann
Councillor Hamish McCallum
Councillor Darren Merrill
Councillor Victoria Mills
Councillor Michael Mitchell

Councillor Jamille Mohammed Councillor Adele Morris Councillor David Noakes Councillor Damian O'Brien Councillor James Okosun Councillor Leo Pollak Councillor Lisa Rajan Councillor Sandra Rhule Councillor Martin Seaton Councillor Rosie Shimell Councillor Andy Simmons Councillor Johnson Situ Councillor Michael Situ Councillor Charlie Smith Councillor Cleo Soanes Councillor Kath Whittam Councillor Bill Williams Councillor Kieron Williams Councillor Mark Williams

Councillor Ian Wingfield

# 1. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

# 1.1 ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE MAYOR, MEMBERS OF THE CABINET OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Mayor informed the meeting of two mayoral events:

- The first being 'Celebrating Diversity', which took place on 13 March at Dulwich College. This was a fundraising event in aid of the Mayor's two chosen charities -UK Homes4Heroes and The Robes Project. It was a wonderful evening of cross cultural dining and global entertainment.
- The next major event in the Mayoral calendar is the Mayor of Southwark's Charity Ball 2015, which is being held at Gouman Tower Hotel, Tower Bridge, London Saturday 9 May 2015, from 6pm to Midnight. The Mayor encouraged members to attend and stated that tickets were available from the Mayor's office.

The leader of the council, Councillor Peter John, updated the meeting on issues arising from the unexploded World War 2 bomb that had been unearthed in Bermondsey on Monday 23 March 2015. He extended the council's thanks to all the services involved in the clearing of the area and the disposal of the bomb. He commended council officers for their hard work during the evacuation period and gave a special mention to the SE1 website for their coverage of the incident; he also thanked them for providing up to the minute information to the local community.

Local ward councillor, Councillor Ben Johnson, echoed Councillor Peter John's praise for all the services and staff involved in the incident.

#### 1.2 NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE MAYOR DEEMS URGENT

The Mayor explained that the group whips had agreed the format of the meeting. The Mayor advised that this was set out in the programme motion which had been tabled at the meeting. The motion explained how the business of the meeting would be conducted.

**PROGRAMME MOTION** (See white paper circulated at the meeting)

The programme motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

# **RESOLVED:**

That the meeting be conducted as follows:

**Item 3 - Themed debate** - add an extra 45 minutes to hear community evidence as follows:

**Submissions** (45 minutes)

 To receive submission from the three groups listed in the themed section of the agenda. Five minutes for each group to speak and to ask a question of the cabinet member. • Five minutes for questions from members (Note: Limit of two questions per group subject to time limit of 15 minutes per submission).

# Themed debate (60 minutes)

- 1. Councillor Fiona Colley, cabinet member for finance, strategy and performance (7 minutes)
- 2. Councillor Anood Al-Samerai, leader of the majority opposition group to speak and move amendment (5 minutes)
- 3. Theme open to debate by all other councillors (45 minutes)
- 4. Councillor Fiona Colley right of reply to the debate (3 minutes)

# **Item 4 - Deputations**

Meeting to agree not to hear the three deputations listed in the agenda.

#### Item 5.2 - General Motions

To be taken in order set out in agenda.

# Motion 5.2.2: Mental health services in Southwark.

• To agree the following change to the wording in the motion and amendment:

**Delete** employee references to NHS and **insert** 'health service'.

• To agree to a change of seconder for Amendment C - Councillor Lucas Green to second Amendment C.

Note: The following procedure rules were suspended.

- CAPR 2.7 (2) Time limit of themed debate
- CAPR 1.14 (15) Alternation of motion or amendment
- CAPR 1.14(4) Single debate.

#### 1.3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

There were no disclosure of interests.

#### 1.4 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

#### 1.5 MINUTES

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2015 be agreed and signed as a correct record.

# 2. ISSUES RAISED BY THE PUBLIC

# 2.1 PETITIONS

There were no petitions.

# 2.2 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no questions from the public.

# 3. THEMED DEBATE - WELFARE REFORM WITH AN EMPHASIS ON FINANCIAL INCLUSION

# 3.1 COMMUNITY EVIDENCE

(See pages 1- 2 of supplemental agenda 2)

The meeting agreed to receive submissions from the following:

# Pecan (Southwark Foodbank)

Council assembly heard community evidence from Pecan (Southwark Foodbank). The following members had questions of the submission: Councillors Neil Coyle, Richard Livingstone, Lisa Rajan, Damien O'Brien, Martin Seaton, Barrie Hargrove and Anood Al-Samerai.

At the close of the questioning, the Mayor then thanked Pecan (Southwark Foodbank) for their submission.

# **Southwark Citizen Advice Bureau**

Council assembly heard community evidence from Southwark Citizen Advice Bureau who had a question for the cabinet member for finance, strategy and performance. Following the cabinet member's response, the following members had questions of the submission: Councillors Maria Linford-Hall, Helen Hayes, Eliza Mann, Chris Gonde and Dora Dixon-Fyle.

At the close of the questioning, the Mayor thanked Southwark Citizen Advice Bureau for their submission.

#### **Blackfriars Advice Centre**

Council assembly heard community evidence from Blackfriars Advice Centre who had a question for the cabinet member for finance, strategy and performance. Following the cabinet member's response, the following members had questions of the submission: Councillors Hamish McCallum, Michael Situ, Barrie Hargrove, Adele Morris and Sunny Lambe.

At the close of the questioning, the Mayor thanked Blackfriars Advice Centre for their submission.

# 3.2 MOTION ON THE THEME: WELFARE REFORM WITH AN EMPHASIS ON FINANCIAL INCLUSION

(see pages 1 - 3 of the main agenda)

The cabinet member for finance, strategy and performance, Councillor Fiona Colley, presented the motion on the themed debate.

Councillor Anood Al-Samerai, the leader of the majority opposition party, responded to the cabinet member's motion and proposed Amendment A.

Following debate (Councillors Kath Whittam, Radha Burgess, Maria Linford-Hall, Anne Kirby, Michael Mitchell, Kieron Williams, James Okosun, Peter John, Jamile Mohammed, Jasmine Ali, Rosie Shimell, Neil Coyle, Richard Livingstone, Ben Johnson, Ian Wingfield and Nick Dolezal), the cabinet member for finance, strategy and performance, responded to the debate.

Amendment A was put to the vote and declared to be lost.

The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

- 1. That council assembly believes that the coalition government's welfare reform has utterly failed, with hardship and deprivation increasing, at the same time as the cost of implementing the reforms is mounting.
- 2. That council assembly condemns the government's changes to benefits which have targeted the most vulnerable and hit families with children under five harder than any other group.
- That council assembly notes that despite the government's rhetoric on repairing the nation's finances, cuts to welfare have been offset by tax cuts for the most well off, meaning the government's welfare reform has made no overall contribution to paying down the deficit.
- 4. That council assembly notes that residents in Southwark have been hit hard by the coalition government's welfare reform, including:
  - The cruel and unfair bedroom tax, which has hit 5,000 Southwark residents

- A benefit cap which disproportionately affects families in London and has left some households facing the threat of eviction
- Unacceptable delays in personal independence payments, which have left over 300,000 disabled people in limbo nationally as they wait for a decision on crucial support
- Cuts to local government funding for discretionary housing payments and council tax benefits.
- 5. That council assembly notes this administration has prioritised our most vulnerable residents, using our resources to protect them as far as possible from the worst excesses of the government's welfare cuts, including:
  - Providing financial assistance and support for residents affected by the bedroom tax and other welfare changes through the welfare hardship fund
  - Providing a much-needed safety net for our most vulnerable residents through the Southwark Emergency Support Scheme, despite government cuts to the funding
  - Helping residents to ensure they are claiming all benefits entitled to them, through the Rightfully Yours advice service.
- 6. That council assembly is concerned about the rollout of universal credit, particularly following direct payment pilots in Southwark, which have highlighted the risk of residents struggling to cope with complex budgeting and increasing numbers of residents falling into rent arrears.
- 7. That council assembly welcomes the steps that have been taken by this administration to mitigate against these risks and to promote financial inclusion, working in partnership with Lambeth and Lewisham to deliver support for residents to prepare for universal credit, including opening bank accounts, dealing with debt and coping with budgeting on a monthly basis.
- 8. That council assembly believes that employment is central to improving the financial resilience of our residents and recognises that current welfare to work provision fails to meet the needs of our most vulnerable residents. Council assembly therefore welcomes the steps this administration is taking to support residents with the most complex needs to develop the skills, motivation and experience to be able to secure employment.
- 9. That council assembly believes that the growth of insecure, low-paid, poor quality jobs under the coalition government is undermining the UK's ability to earn our way out of the current cost of living crisis and adding to welfare spending.
- 10. That council assembly believes that the country's welfare system can only become sustainable for the long-term by getting more people into work, and creating better paid and more secure jobs.
- 11. That council assembly therefore welcomes Labour's national commitments to:
  - Abolish the cruel, costly and failing bedroom tax, which is hitting over 400,000 disabled people nationally
  - Make work pay by increasing the national minimum wage and encouraging

- more employers to pay a living wage
- Tackle the root causes of rising housing benefit spending by getting 200,000 homes a year built by 2020
- Introduce a compulsory jobs guarantee, paid for by a bank bonus tax, to provide a paid starter job for every young person unemployed for over a year, and everyone over 25 unemployed for over two years.

**Note:** This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

# 4. OTHER DEPUTATIONS

As part of the programme motion the meeting

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the meeting not receive the following three deputations:

- A group of local residents in respect of establishing a council complaints advisory forum
- CoolTan Arts
- SE1 Parents.

# 5. ISSUES RAISED BY MEMBERS

# 5.1 MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME

(See pages 4 - 9 of the main agenda and the blue and yellow papers circulated at the meeting)

There was one urgent question to the leader, the written response to which was circulated on blue paper at the meeting. Two supplemental questions were asked of the leader. All questions and written responses are attached as Appendix 1 to the minutes.

There were 33 members' questions, the written responses to which were circulated on yellow paper at the meeting. There were 16 supplemental questions, all questions and written responses are attached as Appendix 2 to the minutes.

#### 5.2 MOTIONS

**MOTION 1 – FINANCIAL ADVICE IN HEALTH CENTRES** (See page 11 of the main agenda)

This motion was considered prior to the guillotine having fallen.

Councillor Stephanie Cryan, seconded by Councillor Rebecca Lury, moved the motion.

Councillors David Noakes and Eliza Mann moved and seconded Amendment B.

At 10.07pm the Mayor announced that the guillotine had fallen.

Amendment B was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

The substantive motion was put the to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

- 1. That council assembly acknowledges the inherent link between financial health and health and wellbeing, particularly mental health.
- 2. That council assembly welcomes the work of the healthy communities scrutiny sub-committee exploring the health of the borough, including financial health. Council assembly welcomes the committee's work in highlighting the impact of financial exclusion on health, in particular the impact on those with mental health concerns who are also struggling financially.
- 3. That council assembly therefore calls on cabinet to introduce financial health services in health centres, to provide high quality debt and income maximisation advice and welfare benefits casework for patients in Southwark.
- 4. That council assembly believes that the provision of high quality financial advice will improve the patient experience and optimise the time of GPs and health professionals, as well as directly targeting the link between mental and financial health.
- 5. That council assembly notes that many user-led local mental health services which give patients holistic support, including financial advice, are currently struggling and at risk of closure because of a number of factors including:
  - A move away from block contracts and a traditional day centre model to personal budgets and recovery-focused day activities
  - The recent decision by the CCG, as the lead commissioner, to commission mental health services with a national provider, instead of a Southwark-based consortium of mental health voluntary sector providers
  - The complexity of the Section 75 pooled budget arrangements.
- 6. That council assembly notes that changes to local mental health services, including financial advice for users, need to be managed and supported carefully and therefore calls on cabinet to:
  - Urgently commission a report laying out the financial stability and viability of the local voluntary sector mental health services in Southwark and bring a report back to the next cabinet meeting
  - Explore one-off or ongoing transitional funding prior to the introduction of community and wellbeing grants in October to support long-established and trusted local services, providing high-quality debt- and income-maximisation advice or welfare benefit casework services in Southwark, in order to avoid any gaps in service provision and allow these services to develop alternative funding sources to make them viable.

Note: This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration

**MOTION 2 – MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES IN SOUTHWARK** (See pages 11 - 12 of the main agenda)

As part of the programme motion the meeting had agreed to the change outlined below to the wording of the motion and amendment and to a change to the seconder of the amendment.

- Delete employee references to 'NHS' and insert 'health service'.
- Councillor Lucas Green to second Amendment C.

The guillotine having fallen, Councillors Ben Johnson and Adele Morris formally moved and seconded the revised motion.

Councillors Tom Flynn and Lucas Green formally moved and seconded Amendment C.

Amendment C was put to the vote and declared to be carried.

The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

# **RESOLVED**;

- 1. That council assembly notes that:
  - Mental health issues will affect 1 in 4 people at some point in their lives and that 70,000 people in Southwark will suffer from mental health issues
  - Mental health issues can shorten life expectancy by fifteen to twenty years
  - People with mental health issues are more likely to experience homelessness, and anxiety and depression have been linked to overcrowded and unfit housing.
- 2. That council assembly notes that the coalition government has taken some steps to improve mental health services:
  - Invested £400 million in early support for people with mental health issues
  - Introduced maximum waiting times for talking therapies and the Crisis Care Concordat to ensure nobody experiencing psychosis is ever turned away from accident & emergency
  - Pledged extra investment for new inpatient beds, better case management and improved access to mental health care for children and young people
  - Helped fund the Time to Change campaign which challenges mental health stigma and discrimination
  - Called on all health service trusts to aim for a 'Zero Suicide' policy and established a government-wide mental health taskforce.
- 3. That council assembly notes, however, that despite the government's commitment to put mental health treatment on a par with physical health, mental health trusts in

England have seen their budgets fall by more than 8% in real terms, equivalent to almost £600m, and spending on children's mental health services in England has fallen by more than 6% in real terms, equivalent to nearly £50m, since 2010.

- 4. That council assembly condemns the government's cuts to spending on children's mental health services, which have led to increased waiting times and children being treated on adult psychiatric wards or having to travel hundreds of miles across the country to get the help they need.
- 5. That council assembly also notes that the government's cuts to local authority budgets which have led to a £90m shortfall in funding for social care.
- 6. That council assembly welcomes the extensive work undertaken by the council and the CCG to tackle stigma, raise awareness about mental health and promote wellbeing in Southwark, including:
  - Setting up a Parity of Esteem Programme Board chaired by the GP clinical lead for mental health, to review the extent of inequality amongst people with mental health problems
  - Providing training for teachers and head teachers to recognise and support children and young people with mental health issues in schools
  - Working with the Time to Change campaign
  - Providing community grants for small organisations to promote wellbeing with their clients/members
  - Commissioning mental health first aid courses for voluntary and community sector
  - Adopting the Mayor of London's Healthy Workplace Charter to minimise the risk of mental distress in the workplace and promoting to all employers in Southwark.
- 7. That council assembly welcomes Labour's national commitment to provide fairer access to mental health services, including ensuring all professional health service staff receive mental health training and changing the NHS Constitution to give people the right to psychological therapies for mental health problems like anxiety and depression, helping to give mental health the same priority as physical health.
- 8. That council assembly calls on the cabinet to:
  - Extend advocacy services available for Southwark residents with mental health issues
  - Consider the appointment of a Southwark Mental Health Champion to act as a link between the council, clients and the different agencies working in mental health
  - Ensure that mental health services receive their fair share of public health funding and review funding for mental health services each year
  - Ensure each council department deals with residents with mental health issues consistently and with a supportive and sympathetic approach
  - Improve the promotion of counselling services available for staff experiencing mental health or emotional issues.

**Note:** This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration

**MOTION 3 – BETTING SHOP ENFORCEMENT** (See pages 12 - 13 of the main agenda)

The guillotine having fallen, Councillors Renata Hamvas and Lorraine Lauder formally moved and seconded the motion.

The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- 1. That council assembly recognises the growing concern of local residents and the council about the proliferation of high street betting shops in Southwark; particularly the rise in high stake Fixed Odds Betting Terminals.
- 2. That council assembly is particularly concerned by recent evidence which suggests that despite age restrictions on gambling, some young people under the age of 18 are using these highly addictive gambling machines in betting shops.
- 3. That council assembly notes that the council does not currently have the power to inspect gambling venues to ensure that age restrictions are being properly enforced, nor is there a requirement for a 'Think 21' or 'Think 25' policy, as there is in premises selling alcohol, tobacco or other age-restricted products. Council assembly also notes that there are currently no regulations on layout in gambling premises to ensure that all customers entering the premises are in line of sight of staff.
- 4. That council assembly further notes that of the 80 gambling premises in Southwark, only two have recently been subject to spot-checks by the Gambling Commission and that both premises failed these checks.
- 5. That council assembly believes that it is vital that betting shops have sufficient controls in place to prevent children from using these highly addictive gambling machines, which could lead to young people developing gambling problems later in life.
- 6. That council assembly therefore calls on the cabinet to lobby local MPs and government to give local authorities more powers of enforcement in gambling premises, which are effectively self-regulating, to bring them in line with other licensed premises.

**Note:** This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

**MOTION 4 – IMPROVE SERVICES AT LONDON BRIDGE STATION** (See pages 13 - 14 of the main agenda)

The guillotine having fallen, Councillors Helen Hayes and Sarah King formally moved and seconded the motion.

Councillors Damian O'Brien and Hamish McCallum formally moved and seconded Amendment D.

Amendment D was put to the vote and declared to be carried.

The substantive motion was put to the vote and declared to be carried.

- 1. That council assembly believes that the current situation for rail passengers at London Bridge station is completely unacceptable.
- 2. That council assembly notes that almost three months since the introduction of the new timetable at London Bridge the situation at the station is worse than ever, with increasing chaos and disruption and dangerous overcrowding.
- 3. That council assembly notes that passengers in Dulwich, Peckham Rye and South Bermondsey, are facing increasing delays and cancellations to an already reduced timetable, and that unacceptable levels of overcrowding are also being experienced at other stations including Herne Hill and Loughborough Junction as passengers seek to avoid London Bridge.
- 4. That council assembly believes that the chaos at London Bridge has demonstrated that Network Rail and Southern are not capable of sorting out the mess.
- 5. That council assembly notes that the Secretary of State for Transport, Patrick McLoughlin MP, has so far failed to respond to letters from elected members in Southwark on the issues at London Bridge, and requests that Cabinet writes to demand his urgent personal intervention to improve the service for passengers at London Bridge.
- 6. That council assembly notes that there are significant transport issues on trains across South East London in addition to the problems at London Bridge, including the lack of capacity on the Southeastern line into London Victoria, affecting passengers at Nunhead, Peckham Rye and Denmark Hill.
- 7. That council assembly notes the success of London Overground services run by Transport for London, which have consistently achieved high ratings for punctuality and customer satisfaction, while more than trebling passenger numbers, and whilst using much of the same infrastructure as Southern.
- 8. That council assembly notes that it is Labour's policy to allow public sector organisations to bid to run rail services, and that in London we have a public sector organisation, Transport for London, which already runs some of London's rail services to an extremely high level of customer satisfaction.
- 9. That council assembly welcomes the government announcement in July 2013 which will allow some commuter rail services out of Liverpool Street station to be managed by Transport for London. Council assembly further notes that it was London Liberal policy in 2012 for Transport for London to run commuter rail services into the capital.
- That council assembly therefore calls on the Secretary of State to allow Transport for London to run all rail services in South East London in order to have a properly integrated transport system.

- 11. That council assembly also notes that the long-term improvements at London Bridge should not just be for commuters, but also improve and green the local environment around the station for residents. Council therefore calls on the cabinet to work with Team London Bridge, Network Rail and Transport for London to ensure:
  - That the new public realm around the station is of equal priority to the development of the station
  - That no opportunity is missed to reduce local traffic and air pollution to make the area more pedestrian- and cyclist-friendly
  - Support for local independent and creative businesses.

**Note:** This motion will be referred as a recommendation to the cabinet for consideration.

#### 6. REPORT FOR DECISION FROM THE CABINET

#### 6.1 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY

(See pages 15 - 56 of the main agenda)

This report was considered after the guillotine had fallen, therefore in accordance with council assembly procedure rule 1.12 (3) & (4), the report was afforded up to a maximum of 15 minutes

In accordance with council assembly procedure rule 2.11 (1), Councillor Mark Williams, cabinet member for regeneration, planning and transport, moved the report.

The recommendations contained within the report were put to the vote and declared to be carried.

- 1. That the 17 March 2015 cabinet recommendations on the community Infrastructure levy and section 106 planning obligations and community infrastructure levy supplementary planning document be noted.
- 2. That the examiner's report on the Southwark community infrastructure levy (Southwark CIL) (See Appendix A of the report), be noted.
- 3. That the Southwark CIL (Appendix B of the report), be approved and brought it into effect on 1 April 2015.
- 4. That Southwark's "Regulation 123 List" (Appendix C of the report), be approved.
- 5. That the Southwark CIL infrastructure plan (Appendix D of the report), the updated equalities analysis (Appendix E of the report) and consultation report (Appendix F of the report), be noted.

# 6.2 CAPITAL STRATEGY AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME REFRESH FOR 2014/15-2023/24

(see pages 57 – 91 of the main agenda and pages 48 – 71 of supplemental 1)

This report was considered after the guillotine had fallen, therefore in accordance with council assembly procedure rule 1.12 (3) & (4), the report was afforded up to a maximum of 15 minutes.

In accordance with council assembly procedure rule 2.11 (1), Councillor Fiona Colley, cabinet member for finance, strategy and performance, moved the report.

Following debate (Councillors James Barber and Richard Livingstone), the recommendations contained within the report were put to the vote and declared to be carried.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- 1. That the recommendations of the 10 February 2015 cabinet for a refreshed general fund capital programme for the period 2014/15 to 2023/24 of £585.6 million, as detailed in the cabinet report attached as Appendix 1 of the report, be agreed.
- 2. That the recommendations of the 10 February 2015 cabinet for the housing investment programme (HIP) for the period 2014/15 to 2021/22 of £1,538.4 million as detailed in the cabinet report attached as Appendix 1 of the report, be agreed.
- 3. That the Southwark Council capital programme 2014/15 to 2023/24 which outlines the key achievements of the capital programme since 2011 and the council's capital investment plans for the next ten years attached as Appendix 2 of the report, be noted.

#### 7. REPORT FOR INFORMATION

# 7.1 SPECIAL URGENCY AND URGENT IMPLEMENTATION DECISIONS - ANNUAL REPORT

(see pages 92 – 99 of the main agenda)

This report was considered after the guillotine had fallen. In accordance with council assembly procedure rule 2.11 (2), the report was formally moved by the Mayor.

The recommendations contained within the report were put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

# **RESOLVED:**

That the schedule of special urgency and urgent implementation decisions (set out in Appendix 1 of the report), taken in accordance with access to information procedure rules 19 and 20, be noted.

# 8. OTHER REPORTS

#### 8.1 PAY POLICY STATEMENT

(see pages 100 – 113 of the main agenda)

This report was considered after the guillotine had fallen, therefore in accordance with council assembly procedure rule 1.12 (3) & (4), the report was afforded up to a maximum of 15 minutes.

In accordance with council assembly procedure rule 2.11 (2), the report was formally moved by the Mayor.

The recommendations contained within the report were put to the vote and declared to be carried.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the council's pay policy statement, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report, be agreed.

# 8.2 ANNUAL REPORT ON THE WORK AND PERFORMANCE OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE IN 2014/15

(see pages 114 – 122 of the main agenda)

This report was considered after the guillotine had fallen, therefore in accordance with council assembly procedure rule 1.12 (3) & (4), the report was afforded up to a maximum of 15 minutes.

In accordance with council assembly procedure rule 2.11 (1), Councillor Jon Hartley, chair of the audit and governance committee, moved the report.

The recommendations contained within the report were put to the vote and declared to be carried.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the work and performance of the audit and governance committee in 2014/15 be noted.

# 8.3 COUNCIL CALENDAR 2015/16

(see pages 123 – 137 of the main agenda and page 6 of supplemental 2)

This report was considered after the guillotine had fallen, therefore in accordance with council assembly procedure rule 1.12 (3) & (4), the report was afforded up to a maximum of 15 minutes.

In accordance with council assembly procedure rule 2.11 (2), the report was formally moved by the Mayor.

The recommendations contained within the report were put to the vote and declared to be <u>carried</u>.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That the calendar of council meetings for the 2015/16 municipal year as shown at Appendix 1 of the report, be noted.

# 9. AMENDMENTS

Amendments are set out in supplemental agenda 2.

At the close of the meeting the chief executive apologised to the Mayor and members for the absence of the Mace bearer and the Mace, she promised to look into the matter and report back to members.

The meeting closed at 10.24pm.	
CHAIR:	
DATED:	